
 

 
 

 

Please note that this meeting will be webcast. 
 

Members of the public who do not wish to appear 
in the webcast will be able to sit in the balcony, 

which is not in camera range. 

 

 
 
 
 

COUNCIL MEETING 
 
 

7.30 pm Wednesday, 18 January 2023 
At Council Chamber - Havering Town Hall 

 

Members of the Council of the London Borough of Havering are 
advised that a meeting of the Council is scheduled to take place 
on the date and time shown above.  
 

 
 

Gavin Milnthorpe 
Monitoring Officer 

 
 

For information about the meeting please contact: 
Anthony Clements tel: 01708 433065 
anthony.clements@oneSource.co.uk 

Public Document Pack



Council, 18 January 2023 - Agenda 

 
 

 

Under the Committee Procedure Rules within the Council’s Constitution 
the Chairman of the meeting may exercise the powers conferred upon the 
Mayor in relation to the conduct of full Council meetings.  As such, should 
any member of the public interrupt proceedings, the Chairman will warn 
the person concerned.  If they continue to interrupt, the Chairman will 
order their removal from the meeting room and may adjourn the meeting 
while this takes place. 
 
Excessive noise and talking should also be kept to a minimum whilst the 
meeting is in progress in order that the scheduled business may proceed 
as planned. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Protocol for members of the public wishing to report on meetings of the London 
Borough of Havering 
 
Members of the public are entitled to report on meetings of Council, Committees and Cabinet, 
except in circumstances where the public have been excluded as permitted by law. 
 
Reporting means:- 
 

 filming, photographing or making an audio recording of the proceedings of the meeting; 

 using any other means for enabling persons not present to see or hear proceedings at 
a meeting as it takes place or later; or 

 reporting or providing commentary on proceedings at a meeting, orally or in writing, so 
that the report or commentary is available as the meeting takes place or later if the 
person is not present. 

 
Anyone present at a meeting as it takes place is not permitted to carry out an oral commentary 
or report. This is to prevent the business of the meeting being disrupted. 
 
Anyone attending a meeting is asked to advise Democratic Services staff on 01708 433076 
that they wish to report on the meeting and how they wish to do so. This is to enable 
employees to guide anyone choosing to report on proceedings to an appropriate place from 
which to be able to report effectively. 
 
Members of the public are asked to remain seated throughout the meeting as standing up and 
walking around could distract from the business in hand. 



Council, 18 January 2023 - Agenda 

 
 

 

 



Council, 18 January 2023 - Agenda 

 
 

 

 
AGENDA 

 

 
1 PRAYERS  
 

2 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 
 To receive apologies for absence (if any). 

 
 

3 MINUTES (Pages 1 - 20) 
 
 To sign as a true record the minutes of the Meeting of the Council held on 23 

November 2022 (attached). 
 
 

4 DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS  
 
 Members are invited to disclose any interest in any of the items on the agenda at this 

point of the meeting.   
 
Members may still disclose any interest in an item at any time prior to the 
consideration of the matter. 
 
 

5 ANNOUNCEMENTS BY THE MAYOR, BY THE LEADER OF THE COUNCIL OR BY 
THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE  

 
 To receive announcements (if any). 

 
 

6 PETITIONS  
 
  

Notice of intention to present a petition has been received from Councillors Matthew 
Stanton and Jane Keane. 
 
 

7 RECOMMENDATIONS AND REPORTS  
 
  

To consider any report or motion presented pursuant to Council Procedure 
Rule 2(h). 
 
(No reports received). 
 
 
 
 
 



Council, 18 January 2023 - Agenda 

 
 

 

8 MEMBERS' QUESTIONS (Pages 21 - 24) 
 
 Attached. 

 
 

9 MOTIONS FOR DEBATE  
 
 (No motions received). 

 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



1C 

 

 

 
MINUTES OF A MEETING OF THE COUNCIL OF THE 

LONDON BOROUGH OF HAVERING 
Council Chamber - Town Hall 

23 November 2022 (7.30 pm - 9.19 pm) 
 

 
 
 

Present: 
 

The Mayor (Councillor Trevor Mckeever) in the Chair 
 

Councillors Councillors Mandy Anderson, Robert Benham, Ray Best, 
Patricia Brown, Joshua Chapman, John Crowder, 
Philippa Crowder, Keith Darvill, Osman Dervish, Brian Eagling, 
Sarah Edwards, Gillian Ford, Oscar Ford, Laurance Garrard, 
James Glass, David Godwin, Martin Goode, Linda Hawthorn, 
Judith Holt, Jane Keane, Jacqueline McArdle, Paul McGeary, 
Paul Middleton, Ray Morgon, Barry Mugglestone, 
Stephanie Nunn, Gerry O'Sullivan, Sue Ospreay, Dilip Patel, 
Nisha Patel, Keith Prince, Philip Ruck, Carol Smith, 
Christine Smith, Matthew Stanton, Natasha Summers, 
David Taylor, Katharine Tumilty, John Tyler, Christine Vickery, 
Bryan Vincent, Frankie Walker, Damian White, Reg Whitney, 
Julie Wilkes, Christopher Wilkins, Graham Williamson, 
Darren Wise and John Wood 

 
Approximately 15 Members’ guests and members of the public and a 
representative of the press were also present. 
 
The Mayor advised Members and the public of action to be taken in the event of 
emergency evacuation of the Town Hall becoming necessary. 

 
Mr Kemal Siddiqui of Romford Mosque opened the meeting with prayers. 
 
The meeting closed with the singing of the National Anthem. 
 
 
42 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE (agenda item 2)  

 
Apologies were received from Councillors Jason Frost, Robby Misir, Viddy 
Persaud, Tim Ryan and Michael White.  
 

43 MINUTES (agenda item 3)  
 
The minutes of the meetings held on 7 September and 22 September 2022 
were agreed as a correct record and signed by the Mayor. 
 

44 DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS (agenda item 4)  
 
There were no disclosures of interests. 

Public Document Pack

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



Council, 23 November 2022 

 
2C 

 

 
45 ANNOUNCEMENTS BY THE MAYOR, BY THE LEADER OF THE 

COUNCIL OR BY THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE (agenda item 5)  
 
The Mayor gave details of his forthcoming charity events including a quiz 
night on 24 November, Christmas Carol concert on 19 December, a Turkish 
meal in February and a Black Tie event in March. 
 
The Leader of the Council recorded his thanks to a number of organisations 
who had assisted with support to residents affected by the Wennington fires. 
These included the Police, Fire Brigade, the management team of Tesco 
Rainham, Harris Academy and the Police Cadets. Thanks were also 
recorded  to the Salvation Army, Asda Dagenham and members of the 
public who set up fundraising pages. The Mayor also recorded his thanks to 
all colleagues who had assisted with the response to the fires. 
 

46 PETITIONS (agenda item 6)  
 
The following petitions were received: 
 
From Councillor Taylor regarding proposed fortnightly bin collections. 
From Councillor Ospreay requesting speed restrictions in Wennington 
Village. 
From Councillor Holt requesting the locking of parks at night. 
From Councillor Holt requesting resident-only parking in Rossall Close. 
From Councillor Holt requesting resident-only parking in King Edward Road, 
Hearn Road and Alexandra Road. 
From Councillor Dilip Patel regarding speed limits in Lynley Crescent. 
From Councillor Keane regarding speeding on the Romford Ring Road. 
 

47 VICE-CHAIR OF LICENSING COMMITTEE (agenda item 7)  
 
Councillor Philippa Crowder was elected as Vice-Chair of the Licensing 
Committee, without division. 
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That Councillor Philippa Crowder be elected Vice-Chair of the 
Licensing Committee. 
 

48 TARGET OPERATING MODEL (agenda item 7a)  
 
A report of Cabinet put forward proposals for a realignment and consolidation 
of the Council’s organisational structure to reduce the number of separate and 
distinct Departments, to coordinate complementary services with clear 
synergies, to enable effective delivery of the Council’s key priorities as well as 
build on the changes and learning from responding to the Covid-19 pandemic 
and create a modern, dynamic and flexible organisation to meet the challenges 
of the future. 
 

Page 2



Council, 23 November 2022 

 
3C 

 

The report was AGREED by 32 votes to 17 with 1 abstention (see division 1) 
and it was RESOLVED: 
 
That the report be adopted and its recommendations carried into effect. 
 
 
 

 
49 2022/23 TREASURY MANAGEMENT MID-YEAR REPORT (agenda item 

8)  
 
A report of Audit Committee gave details of Treasury Management 
investments and borrowings and the associated monitoring and control of risk. 
The report was presented to Council as required under the Treasury 
Management Code of the Chartered Institute for Public Finance and 
Accountancy. 
 
The report was AGREED without division and it was RESOLVED: 
 
That the Treasury Management Activities to August 2022, as detailed in 
the report, be noted. 
 

50 ALLOCATION OF SEATS ON THE COMMITTEES OF THE COUNCIL 
(agenda item 9)  
 
A report of the Chief Executive proposed a revised allocation of seats on the 
Committees of the Council. This was to reflect the recent changing of 
Groups by three Members. The report was AGREED without division and it 
was RESOLVED: 
 
That the seat allocation for political balance as shown in appendix A of 
the report be adopted.  
 
 

51 EXEMPTIONS FROM CALL-IN DECISIONS (agenda item 10)  
 
A report of the Chief Executive listed the recent Key Decisions to which an 
exemption from the call-in process had been granted. This was as required 
by the Constitution under paragraph 18e of the Overview and Scrutiny 
Procedure Rules.  
 
The report was AGREED without division and it was RESOLVED:   
 
That the report be noted. 
 
 

52 APPOINTMENTS TO OUTSIDE BODIES (agenda item 11)  
 
A report of the Governance Committee proposed nominations of Members 
to several Outside Bodies for which vacancies needed to be filled urgently.  
 

Page 3



Council, 23 November 2022 

 
4C 

 

The report was AGREED without division and it was RESOLVED:  
 
 
That Councillors Jacqueline McArdle and Laurance Garrard be appointed 
to the Standing Advisory Council for Religious Education (SACRE) for the 
forthcoming Municipal Year. 

 
That Councillor Jacqueline McArdle be appointed to the Wennington 
Community Liaison Committee until May 2026. 
 

That Councillor Keith Prince be appointed to the Durham Estate 
Tenants’ Association. 
 

53 MEMBERS' QUESTIONS (agenda item 12)  
 
Fifteen questions were asked and responded to at the meeting. A summary, 
including of the supplementary questions and answers given, is attached as 
appendix 1 to these minutes.  
 

54 WEEKLY BIN COLLECTIONS (agenda item 13)  
 

BIN COLLECTION SERVICE  

Motion on behalf of the Conservative Group 

This Council supports weekly bin collection and agrees that Cabinet should 
commit to retaining a weekly bin collection service, with plans for 
containerisation to be put to the public in a fully costed consultation. 

Amendment on behalf of the Havering Residents Association Group 

Council agrees that this Administration will carefully consider responses 
from residents in the current budget consultation and changes to the 
Council’s financial position, together with any changes from the 
Environment Bill, before taking any final decision on the Integrated Waste 
Contract first proposed under the previous Administration.   
 
 
Following debate, the amendment by the Havering Residents Association 
Group was AGREED by 30 votes to 16 with 2 abstentions (see division 2) 
and AGREED as the substantive motion by 31 votes to 16 with 1 abstention 
(see division 3).  
 
RESOLVED: 
 
Council agrees that this Administration will carefully consider 
responses from residents in the current budget consultation and 
changes to the Council’s financial position, together with any changes 
from the Environment Bill, before taking any final decision on the 

Page 4



Council, 23 November 2022 

 
5C 

 

Integrated Waste Contract first proposed under the previous 
Administration.   
 

55 VOTING RECORD  
 
The record of voting decisions is attached as appendix 2 to these minutes. 
 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 

 Mayor 
 

 

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 6



 
Appendix 1 

FULL COUNCIL, Wednesday 23rd November 2022 
 

MEMBERS’ QUESTIONS 
ULEZ  
 
1) To the Cabinet Member for Environment (Councillor Barry Mugglestone) 

From Councillor Keith Prince 
Will Havering co-operate with the installation of equipment for the expansion of 
ULEZ? 
  

Answer 
 Havering’s commitment to tackling climate change is clear for everyone to see.  

In Havering, net CO2 emissions have decreased by an average of 35% across 
all main sectors since 2005, and I am proud that the Council’s adopted Climate 
Change Action Plan sets out how the borough will become carbon neutral by 
2040 or sooner.   

 
That said, I do not consider expanding the Ultra-Low Emission zone as the right 
approach for tackling climate change in outer London. Like other outer London 
Boroughs, Havering lacks the public transport connectivity that boroughs in 
central and inner London enjoy. Without suitable alternative public transport 
options available, our hard-working residents have little option but to travel by 
car when making journeys within the borough, particularly between the north and 
the south. I will continue to lobby all layers of government from Ministers at the 
Department for Transport, to City Hall, to see that change. 

 
Transport for London (TfL) consulted on proposals to expand the Ultra-Low 
Emission Zone (ULEZ) out to the GLA boundary over the summer. The Council 
objected to the proposed expansion in the strongest possible terms, considering 
it nothing more than a regressive flat-rate tax which will impact many hard-
working families already struggling to make ends meet due to the cost of living 
crisis.   
 
The Leader and I took the opportunity at a recent meeting with the Deputy 
Mayor for Transport, Seb Dance, to again stress Havering's firm opposition to 
the proposed ULEZ Expansion.   

 
Whilst Havering will do everything within its powers to object to the proposal, 
should the Mayor of London ultimately decide to progress the scheme then 
Havering will deliver its legal obligations and responsibilities as the Local 
Highway Authority.   
 
A supplementary question asked if the Cabinet Member would commit to 
opposing the ULEZ and not cooperate on it with Transport for London or the 
Mayor. In response, the Cabinet Member confirmed that he wished to protect 
residents but would also have to do what was legally required. 

 

Page 1

Minute Item 53

Page 7



Council, 23rd November, 2022 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Planning Enforcement  
 
2) To the Cabinet Member for Development & Regeneration (Councillor 

Graham Williamson)   
From Councillor Darren Wise  
As reported in the Romford Recorder and confirmed by the Leader that 60% of 

the planning enforcement team has been reduced due to budget savings. Could 

the Cabinet Member confirm: 

- how many current ongoing enforcement cases are open and; 

- how many staff are dealing with enforcement cases and what is the ratio of cases 
to each enforcement officer 

 
Answer 
 

As of the 8th November, there are 646 open investigations.  This number 
changes week to week depending on the number of case closures and new 
cases reported.  Of these, 153 cases have had an Enforcement Notice or 
Breach of Condition Notice served. 
There are five officers handling casework, this will reduce to four at the end of 

November.  Casework is allocated to officers based on the nature and 

complexity of the alleged breach.  If, at that time, all the casework on hand is 

equally split, officers could have approximately 180 cases each.  An alternative 

split would change this ratio.  It will not be possible for the officers to each 

handle a caseload of this size.  There will be impact on the time it takes to 

investigate cases and to take action where it is needed.   

The contraction of the team is temporary to help manage spend in this financial 

year, and the intention is to return to a substantive structure in the new financial 

year. 

A revised Planning Enforcement Policy will be progressed to help manage the 
volume of planning enforcement casework which requires investigation. 
 
A supplementary question asked if the Cabinet Member planned to outsource the 
planning enforcement service to an external company. The Cabinet Member 
responded that this had not been discussed. Some agency staff were used 
currently but this would be revisited. 
 
 
 
 

Page 2Page 8



Council, 23rd November, 2022 

 
Greenbelt Statement  
 
3) To the Leader of the Council (Councillor Ray Morgon)   

From Councillor John Tyler 
In a recent radio interview you stated that you were ”…not wedded to the Green 
Belt.” Would you explain what you mean by that statement 

 
Answer 
 

What I did not add on the radio interview was “I am not wedded to the green belt 
because there may be special circumstances where building on the green belt 
might be the right thing to do and the benefits of doing so outweigh the loss of 
greenbelt, much of which is of poor quality and in any event not always 
accessible to the public”. 
 
A supplementary question asked how much more of Havering’s Green Belt 
would be lost to business. The Cabinet Member responded that the data centre 
proposal represented special circumstances where the benefits outweighed the 
loss of Green Belt. A publicly accessible ecology park would also be included in 
the development.  
 
“Plan for Patients” 

 
4) To the Cabinet Member for Adults & Health (Councillor Gillian Ford)  

From Councillor Joshua Chapman 
Has the Borough received a funding allocation under the Government’s ‘Plan for 
Patients’ to help support discharge into social care? If so, how much has the 
Borough received?  
 

Answer 
 

The governments ‘Plan for Patients’ was published by the former Secretary of 
State for Health & Social Care, Therese Coffey, on 25 September 2022.  As the 
councillor is aware, the then SoS launched a £500m Adult Social Care 
Discharge Fund.  Details of the distribution of the funding was only published on 
Thursday 17th November as part of the government’s autumn statement. 

 
The funding nationally is to be paid out directly to councils with adult social care 
responsibilities, but also via Integrated Care Boards (ICB), with both tranches of 
money to go into the better care fund for use to support discharge arrangements 
from acute hospitals. Of the £500m, social care will receive £200m directly, 
whilst ICB’s will receive £300m. 

 
Of the £200m, Havering via the adult social care relative needs formula is set to 
receive just under £840k, with the North East London ICB being given £7.4m for 
distribution across health and care in the ICB area. The funding will be paid in 
two tranches – the first 40% in early December and the remaining 60% on or 
before 31st January 2023.  The ICB monies has been weighted by population but 
also takes into account the ICB’s discharge performance.  This disadvantages 
areas who have better discharge performance as they will get less money. North 

Page 3Page 9



Council, 23rd November, 2022 

 
East London has the best discharge performance in London and the 6th best in 
England, which means less money as a proportion of population from the winter 
funding for NEL ICB, which in turn means less available for its constituent health 
and social care economies including Havering.  

 
The funding is being made available to systems for activities that support 
discharges from hospital. This includes enabling more people to be discharged 
to appropriate settings, including from mental health settings, and prioritising 
those approaches that are most effective in freeing up the maximum number of 
hospital beds. The funding is also to be prioritised in boosting the provider social 
care workforce capacity through recruitment and retention activity linked to 
supporting discharge activity.  

 
It is too early to say what NEL ICB will choose to spend their allocation on – 
however it is of note that the fund is to be used “flexibly by local health and care 
systems”.  This means the NHS allocation is unlikely to simply be passported to 
borough social care departments within NEL, as there will be other winter 
pressures that the ICB will want to ensure is addressed, such as community 
health services, linked to expediting discharge.  

 
The funding has to be pooled in the Better Care Fund between the NHS and 
adult social care with plans to be submitted by 16th December 2022 and will be 
assured via the regional Better Care Fund regional and national teams. 
Fortnightly activity reports will be required, alongside a final spending report in 
Spring 2023 after the end of the financial year.  
 
A supplementary question asked if an all Member briefing could be arranged on 
how the Adult Social Care Discharge Fund monies would be spent and the 
position with Adult Social Care Finance. The Cabinet Member responded that a 
briefing on the use of the new funding could be arranged. The Overview and 
Scrutiny process could be used to obtain further details on the financial situation.   
 

 
Parks Contract 
 
5)    To the Cabinet Member for Corporate, Culture & Leisure Services (Cllr Paul 

Middleton) 
From Councillor Brian Eagling 

 Would the Cabinet Member provide full details of the tender for the locking and 
unlocking of park gates under the Parks contract including the number of 
tenderers being sought, the cost of the service, the times and frequency of visits 
planned, the number of anticipated fines likely to be given out (if the Council has 
such a by-law to implement fines) and whether these will apply to dog poo and 
litter dropping offenders?  

 
Answer 
 

The details requested will be officially released and accessible once they have 
been finalised by the legal team. 
 

Page 4Page 10



Council, 23rd November, 2022 

 
Once acquired, there will be no cost to the council for the provision of the 
service, which is expected to be fully self-fund through revenue raised from 
issuing Fixed Penalty Notices. 

 
The tender will be open to any applicable bidder that can provide the service 
required. 

 
The intention is that all parks that are lockable will be visited at least twice per 
day and patrolled at various points throughout the day, with other parks and 
town centres visited daily.  

 
We expect the provider to have to issue between 5,000 and 10,000 fines per 
year but we have no comparable data to benchmark with at this time. 

 
To confirm, littering and dog fouling (which are criminal offences & are not by-
laws) are two priorities that are in scope to be enforced against. 
 
A supplementary question asked if the previous arrangement of closing park 
gates at sunset and opening them at sunrise had taken place under a byelaw. 
The Cabinet Member stated that he would check this and respond to Councillor 
Eagling outside of the meeting. 
 
 
 

 
Grass Verges 
 
 
6)       To the Cabinet Member for Environment (Councillor Barry Mugglestone) 

From Councillor Osman Dervish 
 Can the Cabinet Member confirm whether they have taken a decision to reduce 

the frequency of grass verge cutting/maintenance across the Borough?  
 
Answer 
 

An in year operational decision was taken to reduce seasonal staff undertaking 
grass cutting and verge maintenance due to current budget pressures. 
The current wet season will dictate where and when the next cut will take place.  

It is hoped that one further cut of grass on the main roads in the borough can 

take place, weather permitting 

It is likely that staffing levels will return to normal next financial year. 
 
A supplementary question asked if grass verges would be included in the new 
Public Realm contract. The Cabinet Member responded that this would be the 
case, provided this was suitable for residents and that budgets could be 
reduced. 
 

 

Page 5Page 11



Council, 23rd November, 2022 

 
Gritting Supplies 
 
7)        To the Cabinet Member for Environment (Councillor Barry Mugglestone)  

      From Councillor Dilip Patel  
Can the Council confirm that they have adequate supplies of grit / salt to ensure 
that our roads and pavements will be safe for residents?  

 
Answer 
 

The Councils Winter Service policy and plan is reviewed every year and I can 
confirm it remains fundamentally the same as under the previous 
administration.    

 
Winter Service standby arrangements commenced on 1 November and will be in 
place until at least 31 March 2023.  

 
A team of staff is on call 24/7 to respond to forecasts of winter weather and grit 
our road network as required. This is in advance of freezing temperatures and 
during periods of snow, frost and ice.   

 
The Winter Service Policy requires at least 2,000 tonnes of salt (grit) to be in our 
stores at the start of winter, and I can confirm this is the case.   

 
Last winter the Council used less than 500 tonnes across the entire season.  
I can also confirm that arrangements are in place to restock salt during the 
winter as needed. 
 
A supplementary question asked if gritting would continue if there was snowfall 
in April. The Cabinet Member responded that the Council had a surplus of salt 
from last year that would cover this eventuality. 

 
 
 
Household Waste Containers  
 
8) To the Cabinet Member for Environment (Councillor Barry Mugglestone) 

From Councillor Osman Dervish 
 Should the Administration choose to move to waste containerisation as part of 

their changes to refuse collection, what methodology will be used to determine 
the number of containers issued to each household?  

 
Answer 
 

Thank you for the question. Until we have received the feedback from residents 
through the draft consultation on this item, I am unable to commit to a specific 
methodology.  I am sure you will agree it is important to consider residents views 
when looking at this area of service provision.  

 
There is of course never a one size fits all option for these types of operations 
and were any scheme to be adopted it would be dependent on the results of 

Page 6Page 12



Council, 23rd November, 2022 

 
detailed reviews of the boroughs demography in respect of building make up 
and the results of future Equalities Impact Assessments. 
 
A supplementary question asked if the Cabinet Member would ensure that flatter 
developments contributed to higher recycling rates. The Cabinet Member 
agreed that it was important to get residents to recycle and compost more.  
 

 
East Havering Data Centre 
 

9)       To the Leader of the Council (Councillor Ray Morgon) 
       From Councillor David Taylor 

With the proposed Data Centre being described as a Joint Venture, can the 
Administration confirm if it will be providing capital towards the project and, if 
so, how much over what timescale?  
 

Answer 
 

The data centre proposal report considered by cabinet on the 9th November 
2022 does not describe the initiative as a joint venture.  This is an inward 
investment opportunity wholly funded by private finance. Therefore, Havering is 
not proposing to provide capital towards the project.  
 
A supplementary question asked how many Havering residents would be 
guaranteed a job in the data centre. The Leader of the Council responded that 
this was too early to say and depended on the qualifications required. The 
development would however provide great opportunities for people in Havering. 
 

 Staff Working from Home 
 
10)   To the Leader of the Council (Councillor Ray Morgon)  

        From Councillor Judith Holt 
Can the Administration confirm that there are adequate checks and balances 
in place, to ensure staff working from home are meeting service level 
agreements? 

 
Answer 
 

The Council’s Performance Development Review process is applicable to all 
employees, including those who work remotely. 

 
This includes conversations throughout the year at regular 1-1s or check-ins.  
These coaching conversations should: 
 

 • set clear expectations, goals and deadlines 
• focus on outputs 
• acknowledge effort and achievement 
• keep lines of communication open 
• build relationships based on trust, where employees feel trusted to do the work 
and trust their manager to support them in return 

Page 7Page 13



Council, 23rd November, 2022 

 
 
 

Objectives are set for individuals on an annual basis (April/May), however, these 
are ‘live’ and should be reviewed regularly and, where appropriate changed to 
reflect changing circumstances or requirements. 

 
Part of the appraisal conversations, where relevant, will focus on the individual’s 
performance against service and customer objectives and outcomes.  

 
In addition, our ICARE values and behaviours should be discussed throughout 
the year to ensure our staff are carrying out their roles in line with these.  If areas 
for development are identified, an action plan for development will be agreed 
and put in place. 

 
Following the agreement of the comprehensive Workforce Strategy and Target 
Operating Model Policies agreed at Cabinet on 9th November this will inform the 
future checks and balances. 
 
A supplementary question asked how the outcomes of staff work were 
measured. The Leader of the Council responded that performance information 
data was used to inform staff and management about performance and output. 
 

 
Enforcement in Parks 

 
11)   To the Cabinet Member for Corporate, Culture & Leisure Services (Cllr 

Paul Middleton) 
        From Councillor Osman Dervish 

Can the Administration confirm if their tender, for locking gates and litter 
enforcement in parks, is a standalone contract or part of wider a contract for 
enforcement across the borough? 
 

Answer 
 

Further to the earlier question on this, the Pilot scheme has been planned for 
some time now and, as seen already in many other local authorities, will involve 
a private company coming in to support the existing enforcement team in 
carrying out enforcement activities across the Borough. 

 
It will be part of the contract that the private company fulfil the task of securing 
the parks that can be locked as part of their patrols.  
Enforcement activities will not be limited to Havering’s Parks and they will patrol 
borough wide, including the main town centres. 
 
Revenue raised from enforcement activities will pay for the service, and as such 
it will be delivered at no cost to the council.  Any surplus raised can be 
reinvested in the current enforcement team whilst also tackling ASB and 
environmental crime which have become key concerns for Councillors and 
residents alike. 

 

Page 8Page 14



Council, 23rd November, 2022 

 
A supplementary question asked if a cost-benefit analysis of the potential 
increase in flytipping due to cost savings had been undertaken. The Cabinet 
Member felt this had no relation to the original question. 

 
 

Tourism in the Borough  
 
12)        To the Cabinet Member for Corporate, Culture & Leisure Services (Cllr 

Paul Middleton)  
        From Councillor Damian White  

With the completion of the Elizabeth Line, hotels are beginning to open across 
the Borough, in anticipation of increased tourist numbers.  
 
Can the Council confirm if they will take steps to protect our tourism economy, 
by preventing the Home Office from block booking rooms?  

 
Answer 
 

As a local authority, once planning permission has been given for a hotel, it is 
then up to the owner or operator to maximise occupancy and income.  We have 
no powers to prevent an individual owner or operator from negotiating with any 
person or organisation with regard to individual bookings or block bookings.   
 
When we become aware that sustained block booking is taking place, the 
Planning and Public Protection Teams will investigate to determine if a change 
of use has taken place or if there is a need for licence to be sought. Where we 
do have a role is to work towards encouraging footfall in the borough and taking 
advantage of being a destination on the Elizabeth line by making us a place 
people want to visit.  To this end, it is essential that we bring forward the pans 
for the Romford Master Plan as soon as possible to ensure Romford is an 
attraction for tourists and hotel businesses do not need to negotiate with the 
likes of the Home Office for block booking contracts.  We plan to be bringing the 
draft RMP to Cabinet for agreement to go out to final public consultation in 
January. 
 
A supplementary question asked if a report had been received on the block 
booking of hotels. The Cabinet Member responded that this had not been 
received as yet but would be forwarded when it was received.  

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 Page 9Page 15



Council, 23rd November, 2022 

 
Housing Waiting Lists and Housing Stock   
 
13)       To the Cabinet Member for Housing (Councillor Paul McGeary) 

       From Councillor David Taylor 
  Can the Council confirm the total number of residents on housing waiting lists 

in Havering and the total number of habitable, empty, homes in their stock?   
 
Answer 
   
  We have just under 2,000 households on the Housing Register and currently 

we have 78 voids (across all tenures) in progress. The number of voids does 
vary between 50 and 90 at any given point depending on seasonal and other 
factors.  

 
              At this point we forecast this year to have circa 500 stock voids this year. 
 
 (No supplementary question). 
 
      
 
Social Housing Planning 
 
14)   To the Cabinet Member for Development & Regeneration (Councillor 

Graham Williamson) 
        From Councillor David Taylor  

  How many homes does the council intend to purchase, or complete 
construction of, over the next 4 years, to operate as social housing? 

 
 
Answer 
  

The Council aims to complete construction on 416 affordable/social rent homes 
and a further 269 shared ownership homes in the next four years (calculated to 
the end of 2026).  

 
The housing department aims to complete up to 77 buy backs in 2022/23, this 
may increase in future years but funding is yet to be confirmed. 34 have been 
completed in 2022/23 to date. 

 
There are 76 properties to be purchased for regeneration purposes, which may 
be used temporarily for social housing, if timescales allow.   
 
A supplementary question asked if any social housing homes had been delayed. 
The Cabinet Member responded that issues such as Covid, higher construction 
prices, the Building Safety Act and the lack of a station at Beam Park had led to 
delays in some projects. 

 
 
 
 

Page 10Page 16



Council, 23rd November, 2022 

 
Community Infrastructure Levy Spend in Romford Town Centre 
 
15)   To the Cabinet Member for Development & Regeneration (Councillor 

Graham Williamson) 
        From Councillor Nisha Patel 

Can the Administration confirm the total amount of C.I.L money collected in the   
last 12 months and how much has been spent to improve Romford Town 
Centre?  

 
Answer 
 

In the last 12 months from November 2021 to November 2022 the Council has 

received £2.68m in CIL receipts. 

 

In the last 12 months two projects benefiting Romford Town Centre have had 

CIL funding allocated to them: 

o £750,000 has been allocated to part fund a new CCTV control room 

based in the Central Library, ensuring community safety and upholding 

technical standards. 

o £22,000 has been allocated to fund a delivery study for the Rom Valley 

Way Active Travel Route.  

 

This study will help enable the Council to secure £M’s in developer S106 

contributions from forthcoming developments along Rom Valley Way to deliver 

the active travel route extending from the ring road to Grenfell Park. 

 

The allocated CIL funds will be spent in the upcoming 2023/24 financial year to 
deliver the projects. 
 
A supplementary question asked if work could be undertaken to clear graffiti 
along the River Rom. The Cabinet Member agreed to look into this if Councillor 
Patel could send him details of the specific locations affected.  

 
: 

 
 

 

 

Page 11Page 17



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 18



Council, 23 November 2022 VOTING RECORD Appendix  2               

DIVISION NUMBER: 1 2 3

The Mayor (Councillor Trevor McKeever) b b b

The Deputy Mayor [Councillor Stephanie Nunn] b b b

CONSERVATIVE GROUP

Cllr Robert Benham r r r

Cllr Ray Best r r r

Cllr Joshua Chapman r r r

Cllr John Crowder r r r

Cllr Philippa Crowder r r r

Cllr Osman Dervish r r r

Cllr Jason Frost A A A

Cllr Judith Holt r r r

Cllr Robby Misir A A A

Cllr Dilip Patel r A A

Cllr Nisha Patel r A A

Cllr Viddy Persaud A A A

Cllr Keith Prince r r r

Cllr Timothy Ryan A A A

Cllr Carol Smith r r r

Cllr Christine Smith r r r

Cllr David Taylor r r r

Cllr Christine Vickery r r r

Cllr Damian White r r r

Cllr Michael White A A A

RESIDENTS’ GROUP

Cllr Sarah Edwards b b b

Cllr Gillian Ford b b b

Cllr Oscar Ford b b b

Cllr Laurance Garrard b b b

Cllr James Glass b b b

Cllr David Godwin b O O

Cllr Linda Hawthorn b b b

Cllr Jackie McArdle b b b

Cllr Paul Middleton b b b

Cllr Raymond Morgon b b b

Cllr Barry Mugglestone b b b

Cllr Sue Ospreay b b b

Cllr Gerry O'Sullivan b b b

Cllr Phillip Ruck b b b

Cllr Natasha Summers b b b
Cllr Bryan Vincent b b b
Cllr Reg Whitney b b b
Cllr Julie Wilkes b b b
Cllr Christopher Wilkins b b b
Cllr Graham Williamson b b b
Cllr John Wood b b b

LABOUR GROUP

Cllr Mandy Anderson b b b
Cllr Patricia Brown b b b
Cllr Keith Darvill b b b
Cllr Jane Keane b b b
Cllr Paul McGeary b b b

Cllr Matthew Stanton b b b

Cllr Katharine Tumilty b b b
Cllr Frankie Walker b b b

EAST HAVERING RESIDENTS' GROUP

Cllr Brian Eagling r r r

Cllr Martin Goode r r r

Cllr Darren Wise O r r

INDEPENDENT

Cllr John Tyler b O b

TOTALS

b  = YES 32 30 31

r  = NO 17 16 16

 O = ABSTAIN/NO VOTE 1 2 1

 ID =INTEREST DISCLOSED/NO VOTE 0 0 0

 A = ABSENT FROM MEETING 5 7 7

55 55 55

Page 13

Minute Item 55

Page 19



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 20



 
FULL COUNCIL, Wednesday 18th January 2023 

 
MEMBERS’ QUESTIONS 

 
Congratulate Romford FC  
 
1) To the Leader of the Council (Councillor Ray Morgon) 

From Councillor David Taylor 
Will the Council join me in congratulating Romford FC on the 30th anniversary of their 
reforming in 1992; recognising their fantastic FA Cup run, the announcement of a 
Women's Team, and their development partnership with West Ham?  
 

 
Blue Badge Eligibility  
 
2) To the Cabinet Member for Adults and Health (Councillor Gillian Ford)  

From Councillor Darren Wise  
In August 2019, New rules were widened by the government on Blue Badge 

eligibility criteria to help people with 'invisible'/hidden disabilities. Therefore, can the 

cabinet member please confirm, how many applications since 2019 broken down by 

year have there been from individuals and/or their carers with autism? and of those 

applications, how many have been approved and how many rejected broken down 

by year?  

 
Purchase of Land at Bridge Close  
 
3) To the Leader of the Council (Councillor Ray Morgon)   

From Councillor Damian White 
Given the predicted drop in land values, and the increasing costs of construction, 
can Councillor Ray Morgon please provide a statement on the decision to purchase 
the land at Bridge Close? 

 
 
Household Waste Collections Service 
 
4) To the Cabinet Member for Environment (Councillor Barry Mugglestone) 

From Councillor Martin Goode 
Can the Cabinet member please confirm that the new proposed integrated public 
realm contract will include a commitment to the Residents of Havering, to continue to 
collect all residential household waste on a weekly basis.  
 

 
 
 
 

Page 21

Agenda Item 8



Council, 18th January, 2023 

 
Flooding around Jutsums Lane and Crow Lane 
 
5)    To the Cabinet Member for Environment (Councillor Barry Mugglestone) 

From Councillor Viddy Persaud  
 Following emails and discussions with officers, please can the cabinet member 

update us on action taken to deal with the flooding on the roundabout on the corner 
of Jutsums Lane and Crow Lane and the continuing flooding under the bridge in 
Jutsums Lane?  

 
 
Sale of Illegal Vapes 
 
6)       To the Cabinet Member for Environment (Councillor Barry Mugglestone) 

From Councillor Dilip Patel 
 Recently the alternative to cigarette the sales of legal disposal vapes have rocketed. 

What is the Council doing to stop the illegal vapes being sold in the shops in our 
Borough? 

 
 
Hardship Fund 
 
7)        To the Cabinet Member for Finance and Transformation (Councillor Chris 

Wilkins)  
      From Councillor Damian White  

Following the decision to top-up the hardship fund, please outline if the money has 
been spent in full or has the Council taken some of this money back?  

 
 
Housing repair Services  
 
8) To the Cabinet Member for Housing (Councillor Paul McGeary) 

From Councillor Jason Frost 
 Following a spike in reports of poor performance by Mears, could the Cabinet 

Member for Housing confirm whether or not a contact management plan has been 
introduced to address these shortcomings in the housing repairs service?   

 
 
Budget Consultation Data 
 

9)       To the Leader of the Council (Councillor Ray Morgon) 
       From Councillor David Taylor 

Will the Council commit to publishing the raw, anonymised, data to the budget 
consultation, showing the level of support or objection to each proposal?  
 
 
 
 
 

Page 22



Council, 18th January, 2023 

 
Spends on Highway Improvement 
 
10)   To the Cabinet Member for Environment (Councillor Barry Mugglestone)  

        From Councillor Osman Dervish 
In light of the recent inclement weather, will the Council please provide a figure on 
the predicted total spend on highway improvement programme (proactive and 
reactive maintenance, capital and revenue) by the end of this year? 

 
 
Graffiti Prevention 

 
11)   To the Cabinet Member for Environment (Councillor Barry Mugglestone) 

        From Councillor Tim Ryan 
Will the Council outline what work is it doing to prevent and clear up graffiti across 
the Borough? 
 
 

Budget Consultation Cost 
 
12)        To the Leader of the Council (Councillor Ray Morgon)         
  From Councillor Damian White  

Please provide the total cost of the urgent message from Cllr Ray Morgon as part of 
the 2023/2024 budget consultation delivered across Havering, broken down into 
design, print, and delivery costs, providing a breakdown of officer time, spread 
across communications, legal and HR, spent on this project.  
 

 
Fraud Detection  
 
13)   To the Cabinet Member for Finance and Transformation (Councilor Chris 

Wilkins) 
        From Councillor David Taylor  

Can the Council outline the estimated cost of benefit fraud, to Havering Council, 
whilst also outlining the number of detections and successful prosecutions over the 
last 4 years?  

 
 
Homelessness Count and CHAIN Data   
 
14)       To the Cabinet Member for Housing (Councillor Paul McGeary) 

       From Councillor Joshua Chapman  
  Can the Council provide an update on homelessness count and CHAIN data?  
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 23



Council, 18th January, 2023 

 
Petition Concerns 
 
15)   To the Leader of the Council (Councillor Ray Morgon) 

        From Councillor Damian White  
  Please could you detail information on any concerns raised by the Council’s legal 

department on running a petition regarding the local government finance 
settlement for Havering? 

Page 24


	Agenda
	3 MINUTES
	Minutes
	53 MEMBERS' QUESTIONS
	55 VOTING RECORD

	8 MEMBERS' QUESTIONS

